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HISTORY. 37

jurisdiction of the Adalaf, as this court was called, extended over
the present distriots of Khulna, Jessore and Faridpur, and the
first Judge and Magistrate was Mr. Tilman Henckell, whose
adminisiration had a lasting effect upon the distriet. *“His
acquaintance,” writes Sir James Westland, * with every subject
affecting his district was most intimate ; and no wrong was too
remote for his energy to grapple with, no advantage too distant
for him to strive after. T'he idea of his administration was that
it was the duty of Government to procure the peace and comfort
of the mass of the inhabitants, though it might involve some
harm in respect of the Company's commercial interests. These
views were a little too advanced for his age, for there was then too
great an inclination on the part of Government officials to look
upon the natives as born only to bs a means of profit to the Com-
pany. Mr. Henckell was never unmindful of his employers’
mercantile interests, but he always set this before him as his
duty—to guard the then almost helpless natives from the oppres-
sions to which they were subjected by the commercial officers of
the Company as well as by their own zamindars,”

Mr. Henckell was succeeded in 1789 by Mr. Rocke, who

carried ont the Permanent Settlement in this district. He
apparently began his service in Jessore in 1781 as Registrar
under Mr, Henckell, and when he succeeded him in his office,
he continued his pelicy. “In fact,” writes Sir James Westland,
“the fruits of Mr. Henckell's administration are for a long time
visible in the history of the district; and it is certain that its
early records derive great interest from the fact that it was two
such men as Henckell and Rocke, who were at the head of
affairs during the time which intervened between its first establish-
ment in 1781 and the completion of Lord Cornwallis’ reforms,
which by 1793 had changed the first erude attempts at district
government for a system substantially the same as that which
ever since has prevailed.”

The first duty to which Mr, Henckell sst himself was the pojice
reform of the police. In the early days of British rule the adminis-
Faujdars tad been reduced to the position of superior officers b
of police, with thanddars in charge of smaller areas under them,
There were altogether four thinas in the district as then consti-
tuted, viz., Bhushna, Mirzanagar, Dharmapur and Noabad (now
Khulna). Subordinate to these thinas were several outposts or
chaukis. The thana officers were paid, but the chaukis were
worked by means of goindas or informers, who received mo
salary and obtained their livelihood by seizing innocent
persons and extorting money from them, This system did
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the coutract belween the Becretary of Btate for India and the
private company which used to work it. 1t is connected with the
eastern seotion {main line) of the Lastern Bengal State Railway
by a branch from Bangdon to Réanaghat, Un this branch there
is only one station within the limits of Jessore, viz,, Gopalnagar,
pix miles from Bangéon. There is no other railway line in the
distriet, but the eastern section of the Eastern Bengal Etate
Railway runs almost parallel to the western boundary thronghout
this length, and at no great distance from it, and serves Jessore by
means of several feeder roads leading from its stations,

A light railway from Jessore to Jhenida, with a branch from
Kaliganj to Kotchandpur, a distance of 37 miles, is now under
construetion, This line, when complete, will open up some
considerable trade markets.

Exoluding the roads in municipal areas, the district contains
over 1,000 miles of road, of which, however, 451 miles are classed
as village roads, i.e., they are practically only cart tracks. The
Sadar, Jhenida and Bangion subdivisions, where the land is higher
than elsewhere, are best provided with roads, while there are
comparatively few in the Magurd and Narail subdivisions.
The reason for thisis that the two latter subdivisions formerly
depended on their waterways for the transport of goods and
passengers, and it is only since the deterioration of the rivers that
the necessity for roads has been felt. The following is a brief
account of the principal roads.

T'he only provineial road in the district is the Jessore-Caleutta
road, which is a Government road maintained by the Distriot
Board. Altogether 42 miles of this road lie in the distriet,
of which until recently only 52 miles (from Jessore to Bangdon)
were metalled ; the work of metalling the remaining ten miles
up to Kalasima on the boundary of the district was taken
up two years ago, and ‘only four miles remain unmetalled,
'he road is bridged thronghout and has two pontoon boat
bridges, one at Bangiaon over the Iehhamati river, which
is here ordinarily 273 feet wide, and the other at Gaighata
over the Jamuna river, which is 126 feet wide. Only balf a
century ago this road used to be the most important route in
the district, for it was the highway used by people travelling to
Dacea and Assam, After the opening of the Eastern Bengal
State Railway in 1862, the portion south of Bangdon began to
be less used, as traffic with the interior began to be effected by
rail from Chagdaha station. Sinee 1884, when the Bengal Uentral
Railway was opened, traffic has greatly decreased, and the road
is now mainly used as a feeder to the railway.
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The District Board maintains 128 miles of metalled roads District

and 461 miles of unmetalled roads, besides a number of village :lz{“-':ﬂ
roads with an aggregate length of 451 miles. The following
is & list of the most important District Board roads, which may
bo divided into two classes, viz., the roads radiating from Jessore
and the other subdivisional head-quarters and the railway feeder
roads. In the former class may be grouped (1) the road from
Jessore to Jhenida vid Kaliganj, 28 miles long. It is metalled
throughout and has inspection bungalows at Kaliganj on the
19th mile and at Jhenida, (2) Jessore to Keshabpur #id Rajhat
5 miles from Jessore, and Manirimpur, 18 miles from Jessore,
It is 21 miles long, end is metalled throughout. There are
inspection bungalows on this road at Manirampur and at Keshab-
pur. (3) Jessore to Afra, 12 miles, all metalled. (4) Jhenida
to Magurd, 17 miles, of which 3 miles only are metalled. (5)
The road to Khulna vié¢ Singia and Taltala on the border of the
district. It is metalled as far as Siogia, and the remaining
10 miles are unmetalled, The second class includes the following
roads procceding from north to south:—(1) Jhenida to Boraj
(12} miles), and thence to Chuadinga railway station. (2) Kali-
ganj to Kotchandpur (10 miles), and thence to Hansada (9% miles)
and to the Kishanganj railway station. (3) Bangion to Baliai
(104 miles), and thence to Chagdaha railway station.

The rivers are in many cases no longer navigable in their upper , .
reaches except during the rains; but lower down they are tidal cowmux;.
and carry large boats and s‘eamers throughout the year. Steamer CATIO¥s.
services ply (1) from Khulna up the Atharubapki and Madhumat
as far as Muhammadpur ; (2) from Khulna by Kalia to Lohagara ;
and by the Majudkhali, Chitra, Ghorikhali Khal and Nabaganga
to Binodpur throughout the year, and during the rains as
far as Magurd; and (3) from Kapilmuni up the Kabadak to
Jhiogergichha, feeding the railway at the place last named .
the steamer service between Kapilmuni and Jhingergachha was
started by the Bangya River Steam Navigation Company in
1901, During the rains large boats, ranging up to 2,000 maunds
earry jute to the stations on the railway, while some go direct to
Caleutta. Large passenger boats also ply on the N abagangid and
Chitra rivers and the channels connecting them with the railway
stations,

‘ The only canal in the distriet is the Hallifax Canal, a mile 1y, i
in length, which connects the Madhumati and Na.bagangﬁ rivers f:l.:][ful:mll-_
- in the Nariil subdivision. The cross channels connecting these
rivers having silted up to the detriment of traffie, the District
Board, in 1901, excavated the Tonad Khal at a cost of Rs. 17,000,






























































































































GAZETTEER. 151

to the thana of Bhushna, In 1786 Jhenida was the head-
quarters of the Collectorate of Mahmiidshahi, but next year it was
absorbed in the adjoining district of Jessore, and it became a
police thana about 1793, The indigo disturbances of 1860-61
led to the establishment of the subdivisional head-quarters here in
1862, the Jhenida subdivision till then being for the most part
within the subdivision of Magura.

Jhenida is the head-quarters of a Union Committee established
in 1911, The principal public and guasi-public offices and
institutions are:— (1) The subdivisional office established in
1861-62. (2) The Civil Courts consisting of the Courts of the
first and second Munsifs of Jhenida. The Munsif’s court was
first establisched here in 1861 ; but previous to that year the
Munsif of Magura was designated the Munsif of Jhenida. In
1864 the Munsif’s court was abolished, but it was re-established in
1871 ; there also used to be a Court of Small Causes, but it was
abolished in 1891, (3) The sub-registry office. (4) The police-
station. (5) The post and telegraph offices. (6) The dispensary
established in 1864, which is supported by public subscriptions
and grants by the District Board. (7) The office of the TLocal
Board formed in 1887. (8) The High English school established
in 1878, which is maintained by publie subscriptions and a
Government grant (9) The Madrasa, which has been recently
established. (10) The Christ Church Mission house. Not far
from the courts there is an inspection bungalow belonging to the
Distriet Board,

Jhenida has a considerable bazar, and a little distance to
the west of the bazar is Hatkhols, where a bi-weekly Adf is held
every Suvday and every Thursday. There is a temple of Kali
here, which is maintained by contributions consisting of a hand-
ful of everything brought for sale in the Adt. A little to the
west of the latter, in the village of Chakla, there is a large
tahsif cutcherry of the Narail zamindars. In the adjoining
village of Ohuadanga there is a shrine of a godling called
Panchu-panchui, of which 8ir James Westland gives the
following account :—-“ Panchu-panchui has the reputation of
giving children to barren women, and on Tuesday, which
is her levée day, thirty or forty women may be seen visit-
ing her. She lives in a small thatched hut, and her
guardian is an old woman. The applicants address this old
woman, and she retires behind a sereen, whence some inarticulate
sounds are then heard. The old woman them comes out and
states the terms which Panchu-panchui has dictated as those on
which she will accomplish the applicant’s desire. The latter
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